
Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

Transportation & Environment 

Council Committee  

Agenda 

March 16, 2016 

Auburn Hall – Community Room 
                                    

5:30 P.M.   

 
                                                                             

I. Call to Order and Introductions 

II. Minutes of previous meeting 

III. Public Woodlot Management Ordinance 

IV. Solid Waste and Recycling Contract  

V. MMWAC 

VI. Recreation and Special Events Committee  

VII. Summer Street Extension Reconstruction 

VIII. Committee recommendations  

IX. Staff updates 

a. Route 4 

X. Public Comment 

XI. Next meeting agenda setting, April 20, 2016 

 

 



City of Auburn 

Public Woodlot Management Ordinance 

Conservation Commission draft 1.28.16 

Section 1 – Preamble. 

The City of Auburn hereby adopts the following public wood lot management ordinance in order 

to regulate the forest management on public lands within the city, including properties used by various individual 

departments. 

 

Section 2 – Authority. 

This ordinance is enacted pursuant to the Home Rule Authority granted to the city in accordance 

with the provisions of 30-A M.R.S.A. §3001. 

 

Section 3 – Definitions.  

 

3.1 Best Management Practices (BMPs) - voluntary outcome-based guidelines established 

by Maine Forest Service to maintain water quality and minimize sedimentation of water 

courses  

3.2 Community Forest- The sum of 1.Street trees within or upon the limits of any city road, 

public right of way or any highway within the meaning of 30-A.M.R.S.A. §3281; 2. 

Public trees included as part of landscaping at public buildings or parks; 3. Public 

woodlots i.e. parcels which include forested acres which provide or have potential to 

provide wildlife habitat, forest products, recreation, educational opportunities and other 

amenities. 

3.3 Designated Representative- individual identified as responsible for overseeing 

forest management activities related to a timber harvesting operation. Principal 

contact with the forester supervising the harvest operation. 

3.4 Forest Management Plan- A site specific document written by a professional forester 

with input from the landowner which establishes direction and goals for the management 

of a forest land area. The plan will specify all silvicultural practices and activities that 

support the landowner objectives and minimizes adverse environmental impact. Forest 

management plans normally include a description of the land and forest, inventory 

information, and management prescriptions. Forest management plans are typically 

updated every ten years. 

3.5 Harvest Plan- A document prepared by a professional forester describing activities 

involved in a timber harvest, including but not limited to: maps of  access routes, cut 

locations,  principle trails to be used to remove harvested material, water crossings, log 

landings; cutting prescriptions and controls; buffer zones; BMPs to be used; and special 

considerations sufficient to support the objectives of the Forest Management Plan, and 

provide direction to the qualified logging professional conducting the operation under 

supervision of the forester. 

3.6 Professional Forester- An individual qualified and licensed to practice forestry in the 

State of Maine. (Forest management in Maine is limited to licensed professional 

foresters.) 

3.7 Public Trees-All trees located upon any public property owned by the city, including 

public property currently used by any individual departments. 

3.8 Public Woodlot – The portion of the community forest not including street trees within 

or upon the limits of any city road, public right of way, or any highway within the 

meaning of 30-A M.R.S.A. §3281 and public trees included as part of landscaping at 

public buildings or parks. Public woodlots are parcels which include forested acres which 

provide or have potential to provide wildlife habitat, forest products, recreation, 

educational opportunities and other amenities. 

3.9 Qualified Logging Professional- a logger trained according to Sustainable Forestry 

Initiative (SFI) Standard by an organization recognized by Maine’s Sustainable Forestry 

Initiative Implementation Committee, including Maine Certified Logging Professional 

(CLP).  



 

3.10 Stakeholder- stakeholders include a range of persons, including city council, school 

committee, staff of individual city departments, adjacent landowners (abutters), and 

community members. 

3.11 Any term or word of this ordinance which is not defined in this section shall have a 

meaning consistent with Title 30-A, M.R.S.A., to the extent that such term is defined in 

that Title; any terms that are not defined in that Title shall have a meaning consistent with 

common usage. 

 

Section 4 – Development of a Forest Management Plan. 

The city council or its’ designated administrative board or staff member shall ensure that a forest management 

plan is written for any public woodlot(s) that are intended to be managed. The forest management plan shall be 

written by a professional forester with documented input from the individual department responsible for the 

management of the public woodlot and other stakeholders, in order to define management objectives to be 

addressed in the plan. The management plan should address multiple uses, including but not limited to 

biodiversity, control of invasive species, education activities, forest inventory, recreation, special places, timber 

harvesting, water quality, wildlife habitat, and any other appropriate considerations. The management plan 

should be updated every ten years and conform to the current stewardship guidelines as defined by the Maine 

Forest Service. 

. 

 

Section 5- Conducting a Harvest 

A). The city council or its’ designated administrative board(s) shall approve any timber 

harvesting. 

 

B). The harvest will be supervised by a professional forester who shall provide regular written 

progress reports to the designated representative member of the individual department responsible 

for the public woodlot. The designated representative shall be empowered to suspend the 

operation if objectives are not being met.  

 

C). The harvest shall be conducted by qualified logging professionals. 

 

D). The harvest will be conducted according to a harvest plan, written by a professional forester 

and approved by the designated representative, that supports the objectives of the forest 

management plan and provides direction to the qualified logging professional conducting the 

operation. The harvest plan will include BMPs to safeguard water quality. 

 

E). Stakeholders, at minimum abutters, elected city officials, appropriate administrative board 

members and appropriate staff shall be notified 30 days prior to commencement of a harvest. 

 

F). Within 90 days of completion of a harvest, a review will be conducted including the forester, 

designated representative and appropriate stakeholders, in order to evaluate the operation’s 

outcomes. A written review shall be prepared for the city council or its’ designated administrative 

board. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Section 6 – Harvest revenues.  
Net Revenues generated from any timber harvests shall allocated as follows: 

 20% to an account to be used to improve the community forest 

 20% to the Community Cords account 

30% to an account for the support of the department managing the harvested woodlot i.e. 

Conservation Commission, Parks  Department, School Department, etc.  

30% to General Revenue  

 

Exception. When deemed necessary by the city council, this provision may be waived by a super 

majority vote of the city council with five affirmative council votes, on a project basis. 

 

Section 7 – Prohibition. 

No person shall prune, plant, cut down, remove, or alter a public tree. See Section 7 below. 

 

Section 8 - Guidelines for cutting or altering of public shade trees.  

 

  After a public hearing, the city council or its’ designated administrative board shall have the 

authority to adopt, amend, or modify this ordinance. Thereafter, the city council or it’s designated 

administrative board shall use those guidelines in making decisions pursuant to this ordinance. 

 

Section 9 – Violations and penalties. 

  

a) Any violator of any provision of this article shall be subject to a civil 

penalty payable to the city.  Each act of violation shall constitute a 

separate offense. 

 
b) Should any public tree be destroyed, the person causing the destruction shall 

also make restitution to the city in an amount equal to the cost to the city of 

removing the destroyed tree plus its replacement value. 

 

 

c) Whenever the municipal arborist determines there are reasonable grounds to 

believe there has been a violation of any provisions of this article, he/she may 

initiate enforcement proceedings in accordance with the citation system 

established in article VIII of chapter 2. 

 

d) In addition to the remedies set forth above, the municipal arborist, on behalf 

of the city, may seek an abatement of the violation, or injunctive relief, 

including an award of penalties and reasonable attorney fees, from the district 

court or the superior court. 

 

e) The court also may order a violator of this article to reimburse the city for the 

cost of any action that was necessary to correct violations of the ordinance.  If 

the city is the prevailing party in an enforcement action, it shall be awarded 

reasonable attorney’s fees and costs. 

 

Section10 - Severability. 

The provisions of this ordinance shall be severable. If any portion of this ordinance is held to be invalid, 

the remainder of this ordinance and its application thereof shall not be affected. 

 

 

























































































































To:  Auburn City Councilors  

From:  Mayor’s Committee on Solid Waste Management 

Subject:  Solid Waste and Recycling Recommendation for Upcoming Fiscal Year(s) 

Date:  February 16, 2015 

The members of the Mayor’s Committee on Solid Waste Management are pleased once again to present 

a recommendation to the City Council for the upcoming fiscal year(s) based on our analysis of the solid 

waste and recycling (SW&R) management options for Auburn.   We began meeting again in September 

to reconsider the SW&R scenarios we presented to the council last year, as well as a fee based collection 

system which we will refer to as pay as you throw (PAYT).  During our deliberations we met with 

representatives from Pine Tree Waste and Waste Zero, sent out a series of questions to Public Work 

directors whose cities have adopted PAYT, and communicated with Joe Kazar from MMWAC.  In 

addition we held a public meeting in December, 2014 to present the 4 scenarios we were carrying 

forward for final consideration. These conversations and the written responses we received or read in 

the paper have been used to supplement the research we completed last year, inform our revised 

budget analyses, and ultimately determine our recommendation to the council. 

Recommendation 

The committee recommends that the City Council negotiate a long term combined SW&R contract with 

Pine Tree Waste that will be for an automated, weekly pick-up system of curbside solid waste and single 

stream recycling that would begin at the end of the current solid waste contract, June 2016.  This time 

frame will allow for the city to investigate bonding for the purchase of bins and for Pine Tree Waste to 

acquire the trucks.  This recommendation is the same as last year and we feel is supported by citizens’ 

calls for weekly curbside recycling collection in lieu of the current inefficient and burdensome bi-weekly 

system. The committee also recommends that the schools continue to be part of any new long term 

SW&R contract. Furthermore, the committee recommends that if the targets for recycling participation, 

leading to cost avoidance, are not achieved, or the tipping fee for solid waste disposal exceeds the 

current $41 per ton, the city move to a fee for service model, charging citizens for the amount of solid 

waste they dispose. The automated SW&R management system with its uniquely tagged bins will allow 

for an easy transition to a fee based system when/if the city decides to move in this direction.  (At the 

present time, Pine Tree Waste is piloting the data collection software in other Maine communities.) 

As stated in last year’s report to the city council (January 15, 2014), the automated SW&R system 

supplies each residential unit one recycling bin and one solid waste bin, each large enough to meet an 

average household’s weekly SW&R needs.  The benefits of this SW&R management system are: (1) an 

increased recycling rate of up to 35%, (2) a reduction in costs for solid waste disposal and collection, (3) 

ease of use and compliance by residents, (4) elimination of a person lifting the recycling and solid waste 

bins reducing the chances for work-related injuries, and (5) consolidation of our SW&R curbside 

collection to one truck, eliminating a second truck and route.  Pine Tree Waste has agreed to work with 

the city to promote and educate the public about the new SW&R system.  The committee continues to 



recommend that if an additional recycling or solid waste bin is requested, that: (1) the city supply the 

extra recycling bin at cost with no additional fee charged for utilizing it, and (2) the city supply the 

additional solid waste bin at cost and charge a set monthly fee to cover the extra solid waste disposal 

costs.   

Process and Analysis 

The committee determined that 2 scenarios from last year’s analysis were still viable and carried them 

forward for an updated budget review: Business As Usual weekly and SW&R automated collection.  In 

addition, we added 2 new scenarios for the cost analysis, each of which included PAYT as a component:  

PAYT alone and PAYT in combination with automated collection.   Our assumptions for the cost analyses 

are conservative and present a worst case scenario. 

All of the scenarios assume a 10-year contract for single stream, curbside collection of recyclables and a 

2.5% annual increase in collection costs. (The 2.5% increase was the percentage proposed by Pine Tree 

Waste in 2014 and is used for illustrative purposes.  Exact costs cannot be determined until a new 

contract is negotiated.) The tipping fee for solid waste was increased from $29/ton to $41/ton based on 

the new fee schedule from MMWAC. (The rate of increase in tipping fees in future years has not been 

determined.  Therefore we made the assumption for our cost analysis that it would not exceed $55/ton 

for the duration of the SW contract.)   The tipping fee for recycling disposal was estimated at $20/ton 

based on recent correspondence from Pine Tree Waste.  

None of our analyses take into consideration the potential income from MMWAC to the city that will 

arise from MMWAC’s ability to accept more commercial solid waste, at a higher tipping fee, in lieu of 

municipal solid waste as recycling rates increase.   

Scenario 1: BAU weekly [Business As Usual with weekly recycling collection]  

For this SW&R option, a private contractor retains the curbside recycling collection and increases the 

frequency to weekly.  The recycling rate is assumed to double to 16%.  Solid waste continues to be 

collected separately by a private contractor. 

Scenario 2: AUTO [Automatic combined collection of SW&R] 

This AUTO option reflects the 2015 proposal from Pine Tree Waste for a 10-year combined SW&R 

automated collection program.  Pine Tree’s costs include purchasing 3 new automated, dual 

compartment trash and recycling trucks, providing 2 uniquely tagged bins to each residence, automated 

weekly collection, and tonnage data by residence. The recycling rate over 10 years increases from 25% 

to 35% over a 3 year period where it remains at 35% for the duration of the contract.  This recycling rate 

is consistent with data obtained from other towns who utilize an automated collection system. 

Scenario 3:  PAYT [Pay As You Throw] 

This SW&R option involves residents purchasing specific bags from retailers and using them for curbside 

collection of their trash.  Recycling would be collected separately in owner supplied bins on a weekly 



basis.  Based on data from Waste Zero and other cities, the recycling rate is assumed to attain 40% the 

first year and 50% for the remainder of the contract. 

Scenarion4: PAYT with AUTO [Pay As You Throw Combined with Automatic combined collection of 

SW&R] 

This scenario combines scenarios 2 and 3 into one program, reducing the need for 2 separate trucks, 

allowing for a fee based SW disposal system (with or without bags), and supplying the residents with 

bins.  The recycling rate mirrors Scenario 3.   

We developed an Excel workbook with spreadsheets analyzing current and future costs over 10 years for 

each of the 4 scenarios.    A ten year time frame was chosen for this analysis because: (1) we felt that 

taking a long range view of our SW&R management costs was prudent because of the increase in SW 

tipping fees at MMWAC, and (2) Pine Tree Waste’s proposal was for 10 years.  The assumptions we 

made in our cost analysis were based on: 

  Experience from other cities in terms of recycling rates for various collection options 

  The Pine Tree Waste proposal for annual cost increases (2.5%), collection costs, and projected 

recycling tipping fees 

  Information received from MMWAC regarding disposal tipping fees 

 Revenue projections from Waste Zero for purchasing trash bags 

  Auburn Public Works 

The results of the economic analysis of the 4 SW&R scenarios are presented in the following graph and 

table.   

 

 

 

 

$0.00 
$2,000,000.00 
$4,000,000.00 
$6,000,000.00 
$8,000,000.00 

$10,000,000.00 
$12,000,000.00 
$14,000,000.00 

BAU Auto PAYT Auto_PAYT 

C
o

st
 

Waste and Recycling Method 

Total Waste and Recycling Cost 
Over 10 Years 



Scenario Total Cost Collection Disposal (SW&R) Cost Avoidance 

BAU $13,218,506.35  $  9,209,359.07  $4,009,147.28 -$441,894.72 

Auto $11,137,866.45  $  7,624,752.75  $3,513,113.70 -$937,928.30 

PAYT $5,077,216.67  $  9,209,359.07  $3,087,857.60 -$1,363,184.40 

Auto_PAYT  $3,492,610.35  $  7,624,752.75  $3,087,857.60 -$1,363,184.40 

  

As is evident, the Business As Usual SW&R management system is the most expensive option due to the 

highest collection and disposal costs.  The increase in Auburn’s current recycling rate from 8% to 16% by 

moving to weekly collection in the BAU scenario remains far below the rates achieved by any of the 

other SW&R systems and thus has the lowest cost avoidance. 

The benefits of moving to an automated, combined SW&R collection system can be seen in the Auto 

scenarios, with and without PAYT. The total cost difference over ten years between BAU and Auto is 

approximately 2 million dollars.   A reduction in expenses is directly tied to lower collection costs, 

increased cost avoidance through higher recycling rates (35%) and reduced disposal fees.  The 

committee also recommends that the council consider the city purchasing the bins directly thereby 

reducing the overall cost of the AUTO scenario.   

As the graph and table also indicate, the two PAYT scenarios would have the lowest impact on the city’s 

budget.  Moving to a fee based solid waste disposal system results in residents having to pay for the 

amount of services they use, as is done for other utilities.  This system incentivizes citizen participation 

in reducing the amount of trash and participating in recycling. The difference in total cost over 10 years 

between BAU and PAYT is approximately 8 million dollars.  The annual revenue from the purchase of 

bags was estimated by Waste Zero to be $722,000. Ultimately, the committee decided not to 

recommend any of the PAYT scenarios for one main reason, perceived citizen opposition to a fee based 

system for solid waste services.  

The committee members believe that the two bin automated collection method is the best option for 

collection of SW&R, for the reasons stated above, and will prepare Auburn for the future direction of the 

solid waste collection industry.  Indications lead the committee to believe that the industry is gearing 

itself towards a wet waste, dry waste collection process.  The two bin automated SW&R collection 

system will also allow recording of individual bin weights that could be used in a fee based system, 

should the council decide to pursue this option.   

Under the automated SW&R collection system proposal, the committee expects that the council might 

hear concerns that a single trash container is not adequate for certain homeowners. These concerns can 

be addressed in a few ways: 

1. Citizens could be directed to MMWAC where they may drop any excess waste into a dumpster 

at no charge. 

2. The City could provide a second waste bin for such residents at no charge. 

3. The City could provide a second waste bin for such residents at cost. 



4. The City could provide a second waste bin for such residents at cost, and also add a monthly 

cost to reflect the increased disposal costs associated with the extra solid waste. 

5. The City could encourage greater recycling by offering to provide a second recycling bin for free 

to encourage these residents to reduce their waste through greater recycling.  

After careful discussion of these options, the committee members agreed to recommend option 4 with 

the understanding that citizens will still be able to take any excess waste to MMWAC for no additional 

charge.  We recommended this option because it reduces costs to the city and places the onus on the 

residents for controlling their amount of solid waste for curbside pickup.  We also recommend that any 

additional recycling bins be available at cost to any citizen. 

 

 

 

 

 

  



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  

 
 

 

Subject: Solid Waste and Recycling Committee Presentation  

 

Information: In November 2013 the Solid Waste and Recycling Committee began reviewing various options 

for an improved Solid Waste and Recycling program.  In January 2014 the Committee provided the City 

Council with their analysis of various options and final recommendation to adopt an Automated Solid Waste 

and Recycling program.  The Committee’s recommendation was supported by the City Council, but the funding 

was not approved through the City Manager’s proposed budget.  This resulted in the Solid Waste and Recycling 

programs remaining as a weekly collection for solid waste and a twice a month collection for recycling.  

Following the closing of the budget process for FY15 the committee began the work of updating the analysis, as 

well as, a thorough review of additional options.  Staff and Committee members will update the City Council on 

the process that the committee undertook to review multiple options and provide the Committee’s 

recommendation to implement an Automated Solid Waste and Recycling Program. 

 

Advantages:   

 An increased recycling rate of up to 35%;  

 Reduction in costs for solid waste disposal and collection;  

 Ease of use and compliance by residents; 

 Elimination of a person lifting the recycling and solid waste bins reducing the chances for work-related 

injuries; 

 Consolidation of our Solid Waste and Recycling curbside collection to one truck, eliminating a second 

truck and route. 

 

Disadvantages: 

 Moving to an automated system would require a new 10yr agreement due to the capital costs being 

placed on the vendor to purchase new equipment and bins.  By signing a 10yr agreement the city will be 

limited on considering new or improved options in the industry during the life of the contract. 

 Long range strategic plans have not been completed by MMWAC.  The MMWAC Board of Directors 

has had numerous discussions revolving around this subject, but no document has been developed to 

date. 

 

City Budgetary Impacts: For the FY16 budget we enter the final year of our 5 yr. contract for solid waste 

collection with Pine Tree Waste at a cost of $441,048.  Through last year’s budget process the City Council 

approved funding to contract out curbside recycling collection at $96,900 and we anticipate a 5% increase from 

our vendor bringing this cost to $102,000 for FY16.  The combined total for our current solid waste and 

recycling contracts in FY16 is anticipated to be $543,048.  If an automated program was adopted the cost would 

be approximately $680,000 for the first year.  Exact costs will only be determined once negotiations are 

completed.  The cost avoidance by increasing recycling tonnages and reducing solid waste disposal tonnages are 

outlined in the recommendation letter and analysis spreadsheets provided by the Committee. The analysis 

provided shows that an automated program is more cost effective compared to our current programs. 

 

Staff Recommended Action: City staff support the recommendation to move to an Automated Solid Waste and 

Recycling Program.  Staff recommends adoption of the program through the upcoming FY16 budget process.  

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: March 2, 2015  Order   

Author:   Denis D’Auteuil 



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

Previous Meetings and History:  

 January 21, 2014 City Council Workshop:  The Solid Waste and Recycling Committee presented their 

recommendation on moving to an automated program.  City staff supported the recommendation, but the 

funding was not included in the City Manager’s proposed budget. 

 December 18, 2014 Public Information Session:  The committee and staff held a public information 

session to review the various options being considered and resident comments were used to determine 

the final recommendation. 

 

 

 

Attachments:  

 

1. Solid Waste and Recycling Committee’s recommendation letter; 

2. Solid Waste and Recycling Options Analysis 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City Manager or Assistant City Manager signature: ____________________________ Date: ______________ 







City of Auburn 

Transportation & Environment 

February 17, 2016 

5:30 PM 

 Council Chambers 

 

 

Present:   Councilor David Young; Councilor Ernestine Gibert, Councilor Leroy Walker 

(Absent); City Manager, Howard Crowell, Assistant City, Manager Denis 

D’Auteuil,  Public Services Director  Dan Goyette, and Deputy Director, Scott 

Holland  

 

I. Housekeeping Items: 

1. Introductions of Council Committee Members and Staff 

 

2. Selection of Committee Chairperson – Councilor David Young as select as 

chairperson. 

 

3. Schedule of regular meetings – The Committee discussed a regularly scheduled 

meeting time.  It was determined to be the 3
rd

 Wednesday of the month. 

 

II. Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget and Work Plan: The Committee reviewed the plan and 

had no questions for staff. 

 

III. Projects and initiatives Review: 
 

 Community Forest Management Planning as follow-up to moratorium –

Conservation Commission is currently working with the forest board on an ordinance 

update. An updated ordinance will be presented at the next meeting. 

 

 Solid Waste and Recycling Contract –  

The current contract is set to expire in July.  There are various options to the City moving 

forward and additional information on future costs of those options will be included in 

the next meeting packet. 

 

 Future of MMWAC –  

A discussion took place on the future of the facility and what it means to the City if it 

were ever to close.  More information needs to be gathered for the Committee to review 

in the future.  

 

 Route 4 Engineering from East Auburn to Lake Shore Drive –  

A discussion of the current process occurred and the schedule of the project moving 

forward. 

 

 

IV. Priorities: The Committee identified the following as priorities for the next meeting. 



Public Safety & Community Service Council Committee Minutes  

February 25, 2016 

Page | 2 

 

 

V. Public Comment: Tiz Crowley spoke about the committee structure and her hope for lots 

of public interaction. 

 

 

End Session 6:20 PM 


	2016.03.16 Trans & Environ  Agenda
	Auburn Public Woodlot Management Ordinance Conservation Commission Draft 1.28.16
	city_of_auburn_timber_mgmt_plan 5 27 09
	Recommendation final for Council 2-2015 revisions_Final
	Solid Waste and Recycling Recommendation Info Sheet 3.2.15
	Summer St Extension 1
	Summer St Extension 2
	Transportation and Environment Minutes 2-17-2016 draft

